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1 Introduction 
 
 

May 10, 2016 
 

 
To All Prospective Bidders: 
 
 
The City of Pittsburgh Office of Management and Budget on behalf of the Department of 
Finance invites you to submit a proposal for the Payment Processing Solution RFP.  The goal of 
this RFP is to input a Payment Processing Solution that will handle various revenue payments 
for the City of Pittsburgh as well as generate reports of those payments. The term for this RFP 
will be two (2) years from the launch date of the selected vendor. The City of Pittsburgh will 
have the option to extend the contract one (1) year after the initial two (2) years is over.  
 
Any questions in regard to this RFP should be submitted in writing no later than EOB May 20, 
2016 and directed to:   

 
Thoryn Simpson 
Senior Procurement Analyst 
Office of Management and Budget 
City-County Building, Room 502 
Pittsburgh, PA  15219 
Email: thoryn.simpson@pittsburghpa.gov 

 
All proposals will be due by June 10, 2016 at 3:00pm EST as described in the Timeline section 
of this RFP.   
 
Sincerely,  

 
 
Jennifer Olzinger, Assistant Director 
Office of Management and Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:thoryn.simpson@pittsburghpa.gov
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2 Background 
 
The Department of Finance is responsible for the collection and investment of all operating cash 
of the City. The Department bills and collects certain tax revenue; is responsible for tax record 
management and maintenance, including the management of all taxpayer programs such as Act 
77 Senior Relief and Act 50 Homestead Exemption; and is responsible for investigations and 
audits of tax accounts. The Department manages City-wide real estate through data-driven 
performance program that tracks delinquencies, sales, and opportunities for development in 
conjunction with the Urban Redevelopment Authority (URA), community development 
corporations (CDC’s) and private developers. The Department also serves as the tax collector 
for the Pittsburgh School District and provides all of the above services to the school district.  
 
The Department also manages the debt, including both the issuance of new debt and the 
management and use of debt proceeds. The Department oversees the investment of the City’s 
three pension funds, works with the Comprehensive Municipal Pension Trust Fund Board to set 
policy and monitor results, distributes benefits to retirees, and works with the state on funding 
and legislative issues. The Department also manages the financial audit of the City’s financial 
statements that are prepared by the Controller’s Office.  
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3 Tentative Schedule of Events 
 
The following represents the tentative schedule for this project.  Any change in the scheduled 
dates for the Pre-Proposal Conference (if applicable), Deadline for Submission of Written 
Questions, or Proposal Submission Deadline will be advertised in the form of an addendum to 
this RFP.  The schedule for the evaluation process and other future dates may be adjusted 
without notice. 
 

RFP released: May 10, 2016 

Cut-off for questions: May 20, 2016 

Proposal submission deadline: June 10, 2016 

Proposal Review & Supplier Scoring: Week of June 13 

Vendor Demo / Presentations: Week of June 20 

Contract award: On or about July 1, 2016 

Project Start Date: On or about September 1, 2016 

Project Completion:  On or about November 30, 2016 
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4 Scope of Services 

4.1 Purpose 
The objective of this proposed RFP is to find a vendor who will collect and process revenue 
payments for any and all Departments and offices the City of Pittsburgh where any payment is 
received or processed. The solution will provide each department with the technology to allow 
their customers / taxpayer’s options for paying. The solution will provide a full range of E-
Payment services, including at a minimum credit cards, and/or debit cards, and/or checking 
accounts (via one time ACH) over the Web, Mobile Phone, and/or IVR. Some of these services 
shall be offered 24 hours a day, 7-days a weeks, and 365 days a year. The E-Payment card 
services shall include processing common credit cards, including products with the Visa or 
MasterCard logo, and American Express cards made to and through the interactive voice 
recording system, websites, etc (“payment channels”). The E-Payments shall be provided in 
accordance with all applicable Card transaction security rules and regulations including payment 
card industry and data security standards (“PCI DSS”) compliance, all laws, and any other 
governing authority requirements as may apply.  

4.2 Overview of Solution 
The payment solution must accept payments via online, mobile, over the counter, and IVR 
payments. The vendor should have the capability to send electronic bills, statements, and 
communications. It is required that the vendor also have the capability to run various business 
reports and queries related to the payments received. Specifically, the proposed system needs 
to collect and process payments from Real Estate, Local Service, Earned Income, Amusement, 
Payroll Preparation, Institution & Service Privilege, Deed Transfer, and Parking taxes. It should 
also collect and process payments from various licensing, permits, fees, and business 
registrations.  
 
Please answer the questions below in the numbered order and include in Tab C of your 
response.  

1. How many years have your provided payment solution services? 
2. How many clients do you currently have? 
3. Please clearly provide rates or percentages for use of credit and debit cards or other 

forms of electronic payment.   
4. Is there any pending legal action against your company?  
5. Have you been involved in any legal action in the past? 
6. Describe any unique characteristics of your company and services that will provide 

us with superior customer service to improve our reputation and ranking in annual 
industry surveys. 

7. Describe how your application/infrastructure can handle increasing transaction/user 
volumes. 

8. Please provide a detailed diagram of the flow of information within the proposed 
solution. Please be specific about which flows are real-time vs. batch processes. 

9. Please describe communication protocols for data exchange between our 
organization and yours.  Please include the number and types of files required. Also 
describe your ability to leverage existing file formats and delivery methods. 



2016-0022 Payment Processing Solution RFP 

 

  
Page 7 

 

  

 

10. Describe the tools to be used by our personnel in tracking bills and payments.  Does 
your solution support the use of a common employee, reporting and management 
tool across multiple/all billing and payment channels? Describe the functions that are 
supported? 

11. We need a payment solution that will reduce our costs and enhance revenue. 
Explain how your payment solution will meet these goals.  

12. Discuss how your system would facilitate easily allowing us to take advantage of 
system enhancements on an ongoing basis.  Update costs should be included when 
discussing the cost of the service. 

13. The payment solution needs to accept credit cards and electronic checks.  What 
credit cards do you accept? 

14. What methods of payment does your solution support? Does it include all card 
associations and ATM networks? 

15. What payment types do you support (e.g., on-demand, scheduled, recurring, future)? 
16. How does your solution present bill data such as due dates and amount due to 

consumers?  Can an e-Bill be presented to an on-demand payment user? 
17. List and describe the authorization and validation methods you recommend to 

ensure data integrity and reduction in errors and fraud. 
18. How does your solution identify and eliminate duplicate transactions? 
19. Please provide unique features of your payment-processing services, systems, and 

technologies. 

4.3 Online Payments on various City of Pittsburgh Software 
20. Who will host the webpage(s) and support the web infrastructure of the application 

(our organization or the bidder company/affiliate/3rd party)? 
21. How does the customer access the web interface? 
22. Will you provide enrollment support? 
23. Describe how your solution supports multiple accounts paid as part of a single 

transaction or as separate transactions? Are there limitations to the number of 
accounts that a user can view and pay as part of this feature? 

24. Will the payment software integrate with RecPro, Accela, JD Edwards, and CORE 
Business Solutions? 

a. Please list instances when you have integrated with these systems. 
25. Please list all permit/license issuance databases you have integrated with.  

4.4 Technical Capabilities  
26. Do you offer a solution for our employees to accept and research payments? Is this a 

single tool that covers all payment channels and payment methods? Please provide 
a detailed response. 

27. What interface security, fraud prevention and verification/validation tools are 
deployed by your service?  What specific hardware or software must be purchased 
to implement this service? 

28. Can your company demonstrate the employee interface in a live, pre-production 
environment using data provided by us? 
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29. Describe the user administration capabilities for internal users of the employee 
interface.  Can access levels be completely tailored to the users’ needs by us? 

30. Are you able to consolidate remittance and settlement for payments originated at 
banking websites, walk-in locations or other third party acceptors? Please describe. 

31. Explain the tools, processes, and relationships you would leverage to increase 
electronic delivery of bills and payments and minimize repeat paper delivery. 

32. Please describe your indoor self-service payment kiosk solution(s)?  
33. What security measures are in place to prevent unauthorized user access to either 

the system or the data? 
34. What security measures are in place to protect Internet transactions? 
35. What fraud prevention measures does your company have in place? 
36. What expectations do you have of the City, if any, for security of the system and/or 

breaches of security or identity theft associated with use of the system? 
37. Describe your procedures to ensure compliance with current and on-going legal and 

regulatory requirements. 
38. What fail-over redundancy is provided within your solution such that any hardware 

failure does not disable the service? 
39. How often is your system tested for failover performance? When was the last test 

performed? What were the results?  
40. What are your disaster recovery procedures and facilities in case of service center 

failures? 
41. Provide examples of quality control and system monitoring. 

4.5 EBP – Electronic Billing and Payment 
42. Describe your electronic billing solution and capabilities. 
43. The solution must allow customers to view previous bills. How much billing history 

will our customers be able to see? 
44. What bill output/download options are offered by your service (HTML, XML, Excel, 

Text, PDF, etc.)? 
45. How does your solution accommodate links to our home page, customer service, 

biller FAQs, etc.? 
46. Does your solution offer the ability to include links, ads and conditional logic based 

on customer data? 
47. Please describe all the channels in which your solutions can leverage e-bills for 

viewing and payment. (e.g., Web, on-demand, mobile etc.) 
48. What alerts and/or communications are sent to the customer using your EBP 

service? 
49. When is the bill available to be viewed by the consumer and how long will it be 

available for them to view? 
50. What tools or services do you provide to help customers who may not be sure they 

want to turn off their paper bill?  Please describe. 
51. In addition to e-Billing notifications, outline your capabilities to generate specific 

alerts and notifications based upon other triggers. 
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52. Describe your email support capabilities including bounce back processing as it 
relates to e-Bill delivery. 

53. How does your service enable us to send service related emails to our customers 
who opt for paperless billing? 

4.6 Functional Capabilities 
54. Are you able to consolidate remittance and settlement for payments across channels 

(online, phone, walk-in, mobile etc.) and/or other third party acceptors? Please 
describe in detail. What are our choices of file formats to receive this remittance data 
for upload into our systems? 

55. It is a requirement that the payment software not combine credits and adjustments. 
They must keep them separate with reports showing each.  

56. Explain how we will receive the money for payment transactions from your service.  
57. Will our funds be handled separately from your other clients? Explain the process. 
58. How would your solution be set up to apply payments in real-time to our billing 

system? 
59. How are returned items handled and communicated back to us?  
60. Describe your testing process both for initial implementation and any ongoing service 

enhancements. 
61. What controls exist to maintain your system reliability? 
62. Describe the standard reports available to us and the method by which our staff 

would access the data. 
63. What is the standard delivery time frame? What delivery methods are available? 
64. What ad hoc reporting capabilities are offered in your reports suite?  
65. What access to reporting or reporting components can be controlled at the user level 

based on permissions as dictated by our business rules? 
66. The payment software must allow for easy look up of individual payments and issue 

refunds when necessary. It also needs to easily generate reports that separate out 
payments made for different permit types so payments can be reconciled against 
bank deposits.  

4.7 System Support 
67. What resources will be required of our company to maintain, administer and monitor 

your solution? 
68. What is required from the City during the integration / implementation? 
69. What online self-service tools are available to us for look-up, research, reporting, 

etc.? 
70. If multiple services are selected, will each channel/service require a separate tool 

and login? 
71. How do you address system accessibility and functionality by our staff to be 

restricted to meet our needs? 
72. Describe the relationship management team that will service the account, as well as 

their functional responsibilities. 
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73. Describe technical support capabilities, available hours, how the issues are tracked, 
and the escalation process. What software tool is used for this process? 

74. Please describe any support services or tools that your service has to assist with 
exception handling and treasury functions. 

75. What training is provided? 
76. How are client-requested changes handled? What is the timeframe from request to 

having the change live in production? 

5 General Terms & Conditions 
 

5.1 Examination of Proposal Documents   
The submission of a proposal shall be deemed a representation and certification by the 
Respondent that they: 
 

5.1.1 Have carefully read and fully understand the information that was provided by the 
City to serve as the basis for submission of the proposal 

 
5.1.2 Have the capability to successfully undertake and complete the responsibilities 
and obligations of the proposal being submitted. 
 
5.1.3 Represent that all information contained in the proposal is true and correct.  
 
5.1.4 Did not, in any way, collude; conspire to agree, directly or indirectly, with any 
person, firm, corporation or other proposer in regard to the amount, terms or conditions of 
this proposal.  
 
5.1.5 Acknowledge that the City has the right to make any inquiry it deems appropriate 
to substantiate or supplement information supplied by a proposer, and proposer hereby 
grants the City permission to make these inquiries, and to provide any and all related 
documentation in a timely manner. 
 

No request for modification of the proposal shall be considered after its submission on the 
grounds that the proposer was not fully informed to any fact or condition.  

5.2 RFP Term 
Respondent’s proposal shall remain firm and effective, subject to the City’s review and approval, 
for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days from the closing date for the receipt of proposals.   
 
The City may enter into negotiations with one or more Respondents during the one hundred 
twenty (120) day period during which all proposals will stay effective.  The purpose of such 
negotiations will be to address questions and identify issues as the parties move towards the 
execution of a final contract or contracts.   
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5.3 RFP Communications 
Unauthorized contact regarding this RFP with employees or officials of the City of Pittsburgh 
other than the RFP Coordinator named in Section 1 of this document may result in 
disqualification from this procurement process. 
 
Neither Respondent(s) nor any person acting on Respondent(s)’s behalf shall attempt to 
influence the outcome of the award by the offer, presentation or promise of gratuities, favors, or 
anything of value to any appointed or elected official or employee of the City of Pittsburgh, their 
families or staff members. All inquiries regarding the solicitation are to be directed to the 
designated RFP Coordinator identified in Section 3 of this document. 

 
5.3.1 Interested parties must direct all communications regarding this RFP as outlined 
in Section 1 of this document. 
 
5.3.2 The City shall not be responsible for nor bound by any oral instructions, 
interpretations or explanations issued by the City or its representatives.  
 
5.3.3 Each proposer shall assume the risk of the method of dispatching any 
communication or proposal. 
 
5.3.4 The RFP Coordinator must receive all written comments, including questions and 
requests for clarification, no later than the Deadline for Submission Questions listed in the 
tentative project schedule. 
 
5.3.5 The City reserves the right to determine, at its sole discretion, the appropriate 
and adequate responses to written comments, questions, and requests for clarification. The 
City’s official responses and other official communications pursuant to this RFP shall 
constitute an addendum of this RFP. 
 
5.3.6 The City will publish all official responses and communications pursuant to this 
RFP to the City of Pittsburgh procurement website. It is the responsibility of each proposer 
to check the site and incorporate all addenda into their response.  All addenda for this RFP 
will be distributed via the City of Pittsburgh procurement website: 
https://procurement.pittsburghpa.gov/beacon    
 
5.3.7 Only the City’s official, written responses and communications shall be 
considered binding with regard to this RFP. 
 

5.4 Addenda/Clarifications 
Should discrepancies or omissions be found in this RFP or should there be a need to clarify this 
RFP, questions or comments regarding this RFP must be put in writing and received by the City 
as outlined in Section 1 of this document 

https://procurement.pittsburghpa.gov/beacon
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5.5 Withdrawal of Proposals 
A proposer may withdraw its proposal at any time before the expiration of the time for 
submission of proposals as provided in this RFP by delivering a written request for withdrawal 
signed by, or on behalf of, the proposer. 
 

5.6 Public Record 
Respondent, by submittal of a proposal, acknowledges that all proposals may be considered 
public information in accordance with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Right to Know laws.  
Subject to award of this RFP, all or part of any submittal may be released to any person or firm 
who may request it. Therefore, proposers shall specify in their Cover Letter if any portion of their 
submittal should be treated as proprietary and not releasable as public information. Proposers 
should be aware that all such requests may be subject to legal review and challenge. 
Any information considered proprietary should be indicated as such or not included in the 
response. 
 

5.7 Disqualification 
Factors such as, but not limited to, any of the following may be considered just cause to 
disqualify a proposal without further consideration: 
 

5.8.1 Evidence of collusion, directly or indirectly, among proposers in regard to the 
amount, terms or conditions of this proposal; 
 
5.8.2 Any attempt to improperly influence any member of the evaluation team; 
 
5.8.3 Existence of any lawsuit, unresolved contractual claim, or dispute between the 
proposer and the City; 
 
5.8.4 Evidence of incorrect information submitted as part of the proposal; 
 
5.8.5 Evidence of proposer’s inability to successfully complete the responsibilities and 
obligation of the proposal; and 
 
5.8.6 Proposer’s default under any previous agreement with the City, which results in 
termination of the agreement.  
 

5.8 Non-Conforming Proposal 
A proposal shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions of these RFP 
instructions and specifications. Any alteration, omission, addition, variance, or limitation of, from 
or to a proposal may be sufficient grounds for non-acceptance of the proposal, at the sole 
discretion of the City.  
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5.9 Restrictions on Gifts and Activities 
The City of Pittsburgh Ethics Code and Chapter 198 of the City Code (Code of Conduct) was 
established to promote public confidence in the proper operation of our local government. These 
resources outline the requirements for disclosure of interests and restricted activities as related 
to public procurement processes. Proposers are responsible to determine the applicability of 
these requirements to their activities and to comply with its requirements.  
 

5.10 Rights of the City of Pittsburgh 
This RFP does not commit the City to enter into a contract, nor does it obligate the City to pay 
for any costs incurred in preparation and submission of proposals or in anticipation of a contract. 
The City reserves the right to: 

 
A. Reject any and all proposals; 
B. Issue subsequent Requests for Proposals; 
C. Cancel this RFP with or without issuing another RFP; 
D. Remedy technical errors in the Request for Proposals process; 
E. Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-consultants; 
F. Make an award without further discussion of the submittal with the proposer 

(therefore, the proposal should be submitted initially on the most favorable terms that 
the firm or individual might propose); 

G. Meet with select proposers at any time to gather additional information; 
H. Make adjustments to the scope of services at any time if deemed by the Office of 

Management and Budget to be in the best interest of the City; 
I. Accept other than the lowest offer. 
J. Waive any informality, defect, non-responsiveness, or deviation from this RFP that is 

not material to the Respondent’s proposal; 
K. Reject the proposal of any Respondent who, in the City’s sole judgment, has been 

delinquent or unfaithful in the performance of any contract with the City; 
L. Reject the proposal of any Respondent who, in the City’s sole judgment, is financially 

or technically incapable of performing in accordance with this RFP; 
M. Negotiate with any, all, or none of the Offerors and to enter into an agreement with 

another Offeror in the event that the originally selected finalist defaults or fails to 
execute an agreement with the City. 

N. Award a contract to the firm(s) that presents the best qualifications and whose 
proposal best accomplishes the desired results; and/or 

O. Enter into an agreement with another proposer in the event the originally selected 
proposer defaults or fails to execute an agreement with the City. 

P. Require a performance bond and/or other “failure to deliver” agreement by the 
awardee at time of contracting. 
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6 Miscellaneous Requirements 
 

6.1 Acknowledgements 

 
A. Conflict of Interest    

By submission of a proposal to this RFP, Respondent agrees that it presently has no 
interest and shall not have any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any 
manner with the performance of the services required under this RFP. 
 

B. Code of Ethics  
By submission of a proposal to this RFP, Respondent agrees to abide by the Code of 
Ethics of The City of Pittsburgh.  The full Ethics Handbook can be found here:  
http://pittsburghpa.gov/personnel/files/policies/10_Ethics_Handbook.pdf    
 

C. Fair Trade Certification    
By responding to this RFP, the Respondent certifies that no attempt has been made, or 
will be made, by the Respondent to induce any other person or firm to submit or not to 
submit a submission for the purpose of restricting competition. 
 

D. Non-Disclosure  
By responding to this RFP, the Respondent acknowledges they may be required to sign 
a Non-Disclosure Agreement during the contracting process if they are the successful 
bidder. 
 

E. Debarment  
This RFP is also subject to Section 161.22 of the City of Pittsburgh Code related to 
debarment from bidding on and participating in City contracts. 
 

F. Financial Interest 
No proposal shall be accepted from, or contract awarded to, any individual or firm in 
which any City employee, director, or official has a direct or indirect financial interest in 
violation of applicable City and State ethics rules. Entities that are legally related to each 
other or to a common entity which seek to submit separate and competing proposals 
must disclose the nature of their relatedness. 
 

G. Full Fee Disclosure 
Pursuant to Section 161.36 of the Pittsburgh City Code, a Respondent must include a 
disclosure of any finder’s fees, fee splitting, firm affiliation or relationship with any broker-
dealer, payments to consultants, lobbyists, or commissioned representatives or other 
contractual arrangements of the firm that could present a real or perceived conflict of 
interest.  

http://pittsburghpa.gov/personnel/files/policies/10_Ethics_Handbook.pdf
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7 Equal Opportunity 
 
7.1 MWE/DBE 
The City of Pittsburgh is committed to the ideal of providing all citizens an equal opportunity to 
participate in City and its Authorities’ contracting opportunities.  It is therefore the City’s goal to 
encourage increased participation of women and minority groups in all City contracts. 
 
The City requires that all bidders demonstrate good faith efforts to obtain the participation of 
Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (MBE’s) and Women-Owned Business Enterprises 
(WBE’s) in work to be performed under City contracts.  The levels of MBE and WBE 
participation will be monitored by the City of Pittsburgh’s Equal Opportunity Review Commission 
(EORC). 
 
In order to ensure that there are opportunities for historically disadvantaged minority groups and 
women to participate on Covered Contracts, and consistent with the City’s current equal 
employment opportunity practice and goals, the EORC will review contracts to include an 
evaluation of a developer/contractor’s employment of minority groups and women, and 
encourages goals of twenty-five (25) percent and ten (10) percent participation respectively.  
 

7.2 Veteran-Owned Small Business 
It is also the City’s goal to encourage participation by veteran-owned small businesses in all 
contracts.  The City of Pittsburgh shall have an annual goal of not less than five (5) percent 
participation by veteran-owned small businesses in all contracts.  The participation goal shall 
apply to the overall dollar amount expended with respect to the contracts. 
 
The City requires that all bidders demonstrate good faith efforts to obtain the participation of 
veteran-owned small business in work to be performed under City contracts.  The levels of 
veteran-owned participation will be monitored by the City of Pittsburgh’s EORC. 
 

7.3 Good Faith Commitment 
In order to demonstrate good faith commitment to these goals, all bidders are required to 
complete and submit with their bids either: the attached MDE/WBE/Veteran-Owned Solicitation 
and Commitment Form (which details the efforts made by the bidder to obtain such 
participation), or the attached MBE/WBE/Veteran-Owned Solicitation and Commitment Form – 
Waiver Request (which details why no MBE/WBE/Veteran-Owned business participation could 
be obtained).  If a bidder feels that the participation goal cannot be met, the rationale should be 
clearly outlined on the Waiver Request (e.g., due to project size, specialized nature of the 
services, proprietary methodology).  Failure to submit either of these forms will result in rejection 
of the bid.  Copies of these forms are attached as Appendices B & C.   
 
 For further information, including definitions and additional requirements, please see Chapter 
177A (Sections 177A.01 et. seq.) of the City Code and Section 161.40 of the City Code.  
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8 Format & Submittal Requirements 

8.1 Format Requirements 
Each response to this RFP shall include the information described in this section. Provide the 
information in the specified order. Failure to include all of the elements specified may be cause 
for rejection. Additional information may be provided, but should be succinct and relevant to the 
goals of this RFP. Excessive information will not be considered favorably.  
 
The proposal should be bound or contained in a loose leaf binder. Document pages shall be 8-
1/2 inches by 11 inches in size or folded to such a size. Use section dividers, tabbed in 
accordance with this Section as specified below. 

8.1.1 Cover Letter 
A cover letter should be submitted with the following information: 
• Title of this RFP 
• Name and Mailing Address of Firm (including physical location if mailing address is a 

PO Box) 
• Contact Person, Telephone Number, Fax Number, and Email Address 
• A statement that the submitting firm will perform the services and adhere to the 

requirements described in this RFP, including any addenda (reference the addenda 
by date and/or number) 

• Acknowledgement that all proposals may be considered public information in 
accordance with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Right to Know Laws as 
described in Section 5.7 of this document.   

• The Cover Letter must be signed by an officer empowered by the firm to sign such 
material and thereby commit the firm to the obligations contained in the RFP 
response. Further, the signing and submission of a response shall indicate the 
intention of the proposer to adhere to the provisions described in this RFP and a 
commitment to enter a binding contract.  

• If you, as an individual, or if any principal or employee of your firm, has a relationship 
or knowledge of, or contact with any official or employee of the City; that relationship, 
knowledge, or contact should be stated and described in your Letter of Transmittal.   

8.1.2 TAB A: Firm’s Qualifications, Experience & References 
Describe the firm and provide a statement of the firm’s qualifications for providing the 
scope of services. Include in your description your competitive advantage over other 
firms. Identify the services which would be completed by your firm’s staff and those that 
would be provided by sub-consultants, if any. Identify any sub-consultants you proposed 
to utilize to supplement your firm’s staff. 
 
Provide a summary of the firm’s experience in providing these or similar services. 
Provide a minimum of three references for related projects, including dates, contact 
person, phone number, email, and a brief description of the project or scope of work.  
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8.1.3 TAB B: Qualifications of Team 
Provide a brief summary of the qualifications and experience of each team member 
assigned to this project, including length of service with the firm and resume/bio, and the 
qualifications /experience of any sub-consultant staff on your project team. 

8.1.4 TAB C: Project Approach and Plan 
The City of Pittsburgh has an estimated project start date of September 1, 2016 with an 
estimated finish date of November 1, 2016. Provide a detailed description of how your 
firm will approach this project timeline describing how you will implement your payment 
solution within the allotted estimated time frame. Include in your description expectations 
you expect from the City during the implementation along with how you plan to train the 
staff on your software. Identify the staff roles who would be assigned to each major task, 
including sub-consultants. 
 
Tab C should include your response to each of the questions listed in Section 4.2 
through 4.7.  

8.1.5 TAB D: Cost Proposal 
Provide a total cost description for software implementation, training, ongoing 
maintenance, support, hardware, credit card chip readers, transactions fees, and any 
other cost the City should be aware of that hasn’t been listed. Provide a total cost 
proposal for all services to be delivered, and a breakdown of costs delineated by major 
phase and/or deliverable as described in your project plan. If applicable, include a 
schedule of hourly rates for all proposed staff and the amount of time each person will 
be devoted to this project. Define any reimbursable expenses (e.g., travel) requested to 
be paid by the City. Note: if travel expenses are included, the rate assumptions generally 
should not exceed the United State General Services Administration (GSA) rates for 
Pittsburgh.   

8.1.6 TAB E: Required Documents 
Include statements of assurance regarding the following requirements: 

 
• Applicable completed MWE/DBE & Veteran-Owned Small Business  

Solicitation & Commitment Form (Appendix B or C) 
• Applicable completed Fee Schedule Form (Appendix D) 

 

8.1.7 TAB F: Exceptions 
Describe any and all proposed exceptions, alterations, or amendments to the Scope of 
Services or other requirements of this RFP, including the City of Pittsburgh Sample 
Professional Services Agreement. This section shall be clearly marked “Proposed 
Exceptions” in your submittal. The nature and scope of your proposed exceptions may 
affect the evaluation of your submittal and the City’s determination of whether it is 
possible to successfully negotiate a contract with your firm. 
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8.2 Submittal Requirements 
A. Your submittal package, to be returned by the date and time outlined in Section 3 of this 

document, shall include the following: 
• One (1) electronic copy of your proposal in either MS Word or PDF format to be 

delivered via email. 
B. Responses should be delivered ONLY to the OMB RFP Coordinator:  

Thoryn Simpson 
Senior Procurement Analyst 
Office of Management and Budget 
City-County Building, Room 502 
Pittsburgh, PA  15219 
thoryn.simpson@pittsburghpa.gov  
 
 

C. The City of Pittsburgh shall not be responsible for proposals delivered to a person or 
location other than that specified herein. 

D. Late proposals shall not be accepted or considered. 
E. All submittals, whether selected or rejected, shall become the property of the City of 

Pittsburgh and will not be returned. 
F. All costs associated with proposal preparation shall be borne by the Respondent. 

 
 
  

mailto:thoryn.simpson@pittsburghpa.gov
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9 Evaluation & Selection 
 

9.1 Selection Procedure 
A. Your Proposal will be evaluated by a Proposal Committee comprised of the Director or 

other supervisor of the Using Department, one or more members of the Director’s staff, 
at least one member of the Office of Management & Budget and any other department 
representatives as deemed necessary. 
 

B. Submittals will be reviewed for responsiveness, and responsive submittals will further be 
screened by a selection committee in accordance with the above criteria. The firm(s) 
submitting the highest rated proposal may be invited for interviews.  

 

9.2 Criteria 
All proposals will be evaluated using the following criteria: 
 

• Overall Functional and Technical Capabilities of the Proposed Solution (40%) 
• Required Financial Investment for Initial Implementation and On-Going 

Maintenance and Support (20%) 
• Transaction Fee Schedule (20%) 
• Implementation Plan and Approach (10%) 
• Vendor and Key Personnel Experience with Similar Projects (10%) 
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10 Award & Contract 

10.1 Award 
After the City has received all Proposals and conducted its initial Evaluation, described above, 
the Proposal Committee may invite one or more Respondents to a follow-up interview to further 
discuss their Proposal(s).   
 
The Proposal Committee may decide to accept the Proposal of one or more Respondents.  It 
may decide to reject all proposals.  Once a Proposal is accepted, the contract negotiation 
process will commence.  This RFP and your response to it, in the form of your entire Proposal, 
will become part of the Contract.  If a real or apparent conflict should arise between this 
RFP/Proposal and other language contained in the final Contract, the language of the final 
Contract shall control.   
 

10.2 Contracting Process 
Successful Respondents will be required to enter into a Contract with the City of Pittsburgh, 
contingent upon the approval of City Council.  This Contract will be directed and managed by 
the issuing department and the Office of Management & Budget.  A copy of the City’s Standard 
Professional Services Contract is attached for your review.  
  
Work cannot commence on the Scope of the RFP until it a contract is fully executed.  The City 
cannot process invoices nor approve payments until this Contract has been fully executed by 
the Respondent and all required City signatories, including the issuing department, the Law 
Department, and the City Controller.   
 
City laws and policies mandate the incorporation of various terms and conditions into all City 
contracts (see Appendices).  For this reason the City will not sign any standard contract 
proffered by the Respondent.   
 
An agreement shall not be binding or valid with the City unless and until it is fully executed by 
authorized representatives of the City and of the Proposer.   Once the Contract is fully executed 
the City will notify Respondent in writing and give the order to proceed.   
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11 Appendices 

11.1 Attachment(s) Listing 
Appendix A – Sample Professional Services Agreement  
Appendix B – MWE/DBE and Veteran-Owned Solicitation and Commitment Form 
Appendix C – MWE/DBE and Veteran-Owned Solicitation and Commitment Form Waiver 
Request 
Appendix D – Fee Schedule 
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